
71                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                                  (SEPTEMBER 10) (Week 37 of 2024) 

                                     
                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                     
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark E. Nelson         Keith W. Radig        Jeremy J. Taylor        Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held September 10, 
2024, at 4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of 
taking official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come 
before the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board. 
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved 
by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 

                          
 
4:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                     1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                  Action 
 

Consent Agenda 

 

Items 2 through 6 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

         motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                    2.  Approval of the minutes of the September 3, 2024 meeting 

 

                    3.  Approval of claims  

 

                    4.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                         a.  Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions 

                         b.  Authorization to Initiate Hiring Process 

 

                   5.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                        Approval of the permit to work in the right of way for E.B. Baker    

 

https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

                   6.  Board Administration – Karen James 

                        Approval of resolution for abatement of taxes for Abune Aregawi Tigray Orthodox Tewahdo   

                        Church     

 

                    End Consent Agenda 

                   

                  7.  Building Services – Kenny Schmitz 

                       Approval of an emergency generator service contract and annual payment option              Action 

                       with Ziegler-Cat 

                        

                  8.  County Auditor/Recorder – Patrick Gill 

                       Approval to purchase a plotter/scanner to replace current equipment for GIS/Mapping       Action 

                       needs 

 

                  9.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                       a.  Receive bids for crack routing and sealing and return them to the county engineer        Action 

                            for review and recommendation 

                       b.  Award bid if low quote is clearly determined by bid results                                              Action 

                       c.  Receive bids and award bid if low quote is clearly determined by bid results for             Action 

                            crane rental setting the precast box culvert replacement for county bridge U-137 

                            FHWA #350913 

 

Recess Board of Supervisors Meeting 

Convene Bennett McDonald Levee & Wolf Creek Drainage Districts Trustees Meeting 

 

                10.  ISG – Caleb Rasmussen & Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                       Approval to direct the drainage engineer to file a written request to the Corps                   Action 

                      of Engineers to address repairs to the Bennett McDonald Smithland levee district    

 

Adjourn Bennett McDonald Levee & Wolf Creek Drainage Districts Trustees Meeting 

Continue Board of Supervisors Meeting 

 

                11.   Board of Supervisors – Matthew Ung & Daniel Bittinger 

                        Authorize the Chairman to sign agreement for hospital morgue use with Unity                 Action 

                        Point Health – Sioux City 

 

                12.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                  Information    

 

                13.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                          Information  

  

                14.  Board Concerns                                                                                                           Information    

  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                               
WED., SEP 11     7:30 a.m.      SIMPCO Executive-Finance Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordan Drive  

                             8:05 a.m.     Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 

                           12:00 p.m.     District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St. 

THU., SEP 12    12:00 p.m.     SIMPCO Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon Drive                             

WED., SEP 18   12:00 p.m.     Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 

THU., SEP 19      4:30 p.m.     Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   

FRI., SEP 20      12:00 p.m.     Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave. 

MON., SEP 23     6:00 p.m.     Zoning Commission Meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom                                                        

WED., SEP 24     2:30 p.m.     Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 

THU., SEP 26    10:00 a.m.     Siouxland Regional Transit Systems (SRTS) Board Meeting, SIMPCO Office, 6401 Gordan 

                           11:15 a.m.    Western Iowa Community Improvement Regional Housing Trust Fund Meeting, 6401 Gordan 

WED., OCT 2       4:45 p.m.    Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.  

THU., OCT 3      12:00 p.m.    SIMPCO Regional Policy & Legislative Affairs Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordan Drive  

MON., OCT 7       6:00 p.m.    Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom                                                   

WED., OCT 9       7:30 a.m.    SIMPCO Executive Finance Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordan Drive   

                             8:05 a.m.    Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 

                           10:00 a.m.    STARComm Board Meeting, The Security Institute, WIT Campus 

                           12:00 p.m.    District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St.                        

THU., OCT 10    12:00 p.m.    SIMPCO Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon Drive.                           

                             4:00 p.m.    Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 

 

                           

 
 
 
 
     

 

 

 

  
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



SEPTEMBER 3, 2024, THIRTY-SIXTH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, September 3, 2024, at 4:00 p.m.  Board members present were Ung, Radig, 
Taylor, Bittinger II, and Nelson. Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Melissa Thomas, 
Human Resources Director, and Patrick Gill, Auditor/Clerk to the Board.  
 
Motion by Taylor second by Radig to go into closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(a).  Carried 3-0 on a roll call vote; 
Ung and Nelson were not present. 
 
Motion by Taylor second by Bittinger to go out of closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(a).  Carried 3-0 on a roll call 
vote; Ung and Nelson were not present. 
 
Motion by Taylor second by Bittinger to approve $400.00 for assistance if the conditions agreed to are met by the 
appellant.  Carried 2-1 with Radig opposed; Nelson and Ung were not present. 
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
 
1.  Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the agenda for September 3, 2024.  Carried 5-0.   Copy filed. 
 

Motion by Taylor second by Ung to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2.  To approve minutes of the August 27, 2024, meeting.  Copy filed. 
  
3.  To approve the claims totaling $602,576.77.  Copy filed. 
 
4a. To approve the appointment of Lexi Thompson, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 09-16-2024, 

$24.57/hour. Job Vacancy Posted 5/21/2024. Entry Level Salary: $24.57/hour.; the appointment of Melody Ress, 
Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 09-16-24, $24.57/hour.  Job Vacancy Posted 05/21/2024.  Entry Level 
Salary:  $24.57/hour.; the appointment of Lisa Anderson, Temp Secretary, Human Resources Dept., effective 09-
09-2024, $28.72/hour.  Job Vacancy Posted 08/20/2024.  Entry Level Salary:  $28.72/hour.; the transfer of Vy 
Trobaugh-Huynhle, Senior Clerk, Human Resources Dept., effective 09-16-2024, $22.92/hour, 16%=$3.68/hour.  
Transfer from Treasurer’s Office to HR.; the appointment of Bandon Pollema, Paramedic, Emergency Services 
Dept., effective 09-09-2024, $25.23/hour.  Job Vacancy Posted 05/13/2023.  Salary: $25.23/hour.; and the 
separation of Michelle Kyle, Paramedic, Emergency Services Dept., effective 08-28-2024. Separation.  Copy filed. 

 
4b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Clerk II, 

County Treasurer Dept. AFSCME Courthouse: $19.24/hour; and Paramedic, Emergency Services Dept.  
$26.84/hour.  Copy filed.  

 
5. To approve to set dates and times for 3 public hearings for the consideration of proposed amendments/revisions 

to Woodbury County Ordinance #56: An Ordinance regulating commercial wind energy conversion systems in 
unincorporated Woodbury County for 9/17/24 at 4:45 p.m., 9/24/24 at 4:45 p.m., and 10/01/24 at 4:45 p.m.  Copy 
filed. 

 
6. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution approving abatement of taxes for Rolling Hills 

Community Services Region, parcel #894710401001.   
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,790 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ABATEMENT OF TAXES 
 

WHEREAS, Rolling Hills Community Services Region is the titleholder of real estate Parcel #894710401001 located 
in Woodbury County, Iowa and legally described as follows:   
 
Parcel #894710401001 
 



September 3, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 2 
 

 

 

 

LL-SC COMM 89-47 AN IRREG TCT BEG AT SW CORNER NW SE THEC N 634.78 FT THEC E 33 FT TO PT OF BEG: 
THEC CONT N 319.83 FT THEC NELY 67.83 FT THEC SELY 66.65 FT THEC CONT SELY 245.75 FT THEC S 146.76 FT TO 
N LINE PATRICIA A THOMPSON 3RD ADDN THEC W 180 FT TO PT OF BEG NW SE 10-89-47 
   
WHEREAS, the above-stated property has an unpaid balance of taxes owing, and the parcel is owned by a political 
subdivision of the state; and 
 
WHEREAS, the political subdivision, namely Rolling Hills Community Services Region, is failing to immediately pay 
the taxes due; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors sees that good cause exists for the abatement of these taxes and;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors hereby abates the taxes owing 
on the above parcel according to Code of Iowa, 445.63 and hereby directs the Woodbury County Treasurer to abate 
these aforementioned taxes from the tax records. 
  
SO RESOLVED this 3rd day of September 2024. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
7. To approve the permit to work in the right of way for Mark Godfredson.  Copy filed. 
 
8. To approve the consent and waiver with Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. regarding Joint Representation of Certain Counties 

for Purposes of Seeking Judicial Review of the Iowa Utilities Commission’s Decision Granting a Pipeline Permit to 
Summit Carbon Solutions.  Copy filed. 

 
Carried 5-0. 
 
9. A public hearing was held at 4:35 p.m. for the sale of parcel #894729285006, 512 14 Market St.  The Chairperson 

called on anyone wishing to be heard. 
 
 Motion by Taylor second by Ung to close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0. 
 
 Motion by Taylor second by Ung to approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution for the sale of 

parcel #894729285006, 512 14 Market St., to Salvador Palmillas & Melisa Yaneth Villanueva Meza, 518 Market St., 
Sioux City, for $265.00 plus recording fees.  Carried 5-0. 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,791 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, that the offer at public auction of: 
 
By      Salvador Palmillas and Melisa Yaneth Villanueva Meza                                            in the sum of  Two Hundred 
Sixty-Five and 00/100 ($265.00)------------------------ ------------------------------dollars. 
 
For the following described real estate, To Wit: 
 
Parcel #894729285019 
Lots Three (3) Block Twenty-Six (26) Sioux City Addition in the County of Woodbury and State of Iowa 
(512 – 14 Market Street) 
 
Now and included in and forming a part of the City of Sioux City, Iowa, the same is hereby accepted: said 



September 3, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 3 
 

 

 

 

Amount being a sum LESS than the amount of the general taxes, interests, costs and penalties against the said Real 
Estate. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that payment is due by close of business on the day of passage of this resolution or this sale is null 
and void and this resolution shall be rescinded. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that per Code of Iowa Section 569.8(3 & 4), a parcel the County holds by tax deed shall not be 
assessed or taxed until transferred and upon transfer of a parcel so acquired gives the purchaser free title as to 
previously levied or set taxes.  Therefore, the County Treasurer is requested to abate any taxes previously levied or 
set on this parcel(s). 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chairman of this Board be and he is hereby authorized to execute a Quit Claim 
Deed for the said premises to the said purchaser. 
 
SO DATED this 3rd Day of September, 2024. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
10. Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
11. Todd Copley, AFSCME 61, addressed the Board with concerns regarding Memorandum of Understanding passed by 

the Board on August 13, 2024 and rejected by Union Members.   
  
 Motion by Nelson second by Taylor to suspend the time limit rule for Copley.  Carried 5-0. 
 
 Trevor Bass, Sioux City, Athena Ladeas, Sioux City, Bob Henderson, Sioux City, Matt Verzani, Sioux City, Ben 

Ingersoll, Iowa, Loan Hensley, Sioux City, Doyle Turner, Moville, Jen Pellant, Council Bluffs addressed the Board in 
regards to the Memorandum of Understanding. 

 
12. Board concerns were heard. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until September 10, 2024. 
  
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



     

     

     

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT         
                                                                             

MEMORANDUM OF PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS                                                       
                          
                                         * PERSONNEL ACTION CODE:          
DATE:  _September 10th, 2024__                  A- Appointment                      R-Reclassification 

                                                                                   T - Transfer   E- End of Probation 

                                                                                        P - Promotion   S - Separation 

      D - Demotion   O – Other 

 

TO:  WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 

NAME 

 

DEPARTMENT 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

 

JOB TITLE 

SALARY 

REQUESTED 

 

% 

INCREASE 

 

* 

 

REMARKS 

 

Lindgren, 

Benjamin 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

8-28-2024 

 

Civilian Jailer 

 

 

  

S 

 

Resignation 

 

Sievers, Laura 

 

 

Secondary Roads 

 

 

 

9-16-2024 

 

 

County 

Engineer 

 

 

$166,860.00/year 

 

 

 

 

 

   A 

 

Job Vacancy 

Posted on 

12/27/2023. 

  

 

 

Hinrickson, 

Kelsey 

 

 

 

Treasurer 

 

 

9-16-2024 

 

 

Clerk II - Tax 

 

 

$20.14/hour 

 

 

5% = $0.90/hr 

 

 

R 

Per AFSCME: 

From Step 1 to 

Step 2. 

Anniversary 

Date: 9/27/24. 

 

 

Launsby, 

Traci 

 

 

 

Juvenile Detention 

 

 

9-20-2024 

 

 

Youth Worker 

 

 

$22.05/hour 

  

 

A 

Job Vacancy 

Posted on 

7/12/2024. 

Entry Level 

Salary: 

$22.05/hour 

 

Harazin, 

Olivia 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

8-29-2024 

 

Reserve Officer 

 

$1.00/year 

  

A 

 

 

Hiemstra, 

Sam 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

8-29-2024 

 

Reserve Officer 

 

$1.00/year 

  

A 

 

 

Van Zanten, 

Devin 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

8-29-2024 

 

Reserve Officer 

 

$1.00/year 

  

A 

 

 

McIntyre, 

Samuel 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

8-29-2024 

 

Reserve Officer 

 

$1.00/year 

  

A 

 

 

Dougherty, 

Elijah 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

8-29-2024 

 

 

Reserve Officer 

 

$1.00/year 

  

A 

 

 

APPROVED BY BOARD DATE:          ______________________________  

 

       

 

MELISSA THOMAS, HR DIRECTOR:        ______________________________ 

           

 







HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 

 DATE: September 10th, 2024 

 

AUTHORIZATION TO INITIATE HIRING PROCESS 

DEPARTMENT POSITION ENTRY LEVEL APPROVED DISAPPROVED 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

Civilian Jailer 

CWA Civilian:  

$24.57/hour 

  

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

___________________________________________  

Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
(AUTHFORM.doc/FORMS) 









WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #  
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ABATEMENT OF TAXES  
 

 
WHEREAS, Abune Aregawi Tigray Orthodox Tewahdo Church is the titleholder of real 
estate Parcel #894721377013 located in the City of Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa 
and legally described as follows:   
 

Parcel # 894721377013 
 
HIGMANS S 60 FT LOT 3 BLK 11 
 

    
WHEREAS, the above-stated property has taxes owing for the 2023 tax year and the 
parcel is owned by Abune Aregawi Tigray Orthodox Tewahdo Church, and 
 
WHEREAS, the organization, namely Abune Aregawi Tigray Orthodox Tewahdo Church 
is failing to immediately pay the taxes due; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors sees that good cause exists for the abatement of 
these taxes and;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors hereby abates the taxes owing on the above parcel according to Code of 
Iowa, 427.3 for the taxes owed for the 2023 tax year and hereby directs the Woodbury 
County Treasurer to abate these aforementioned taxes from the tax records. 
  
SO RESOLVED this 10th day of September, 2024. 
 
 

 ATTEST:                                                    WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
__________________________                    __________________________________ 
Patrick F. Gill                                                           Matthew Ung, Chairman 
Woodbury County Auditor/Recorder 
 
 
 



To: County Board of Supervisors 

From: Abune Tsehay Aregawi Tigray Tewahedo church 

Date 9/5/24 

621 16TH ST, Sioux city, IA 51105 

Subject: Abatement for 2023 taxes 

Abune Tsehay Aregawi Tigray Tewahedo Church was formed in February of 2022 by a community 

of Ethiopians (from the Tigray region). Kept up by which are now 30-40 paying members (50 dollars per 

month). Due to a mix of a language barrier and not having enough knowledge about properly 

establishing a non-for-profit organization (Our Church), our church was not able to realize the need and 

apply for 2023 tax exemption. We did, however apply for tax exemption as soon as we found out we 

needed to and got approved for 2024. Nothing has changed in 2024, we’ve been using this property for 

sole purpose of providing church services from the beginning. We’re writing this letter in hopes of 

getting an abatement for 2023 taxes. 10,000 dollars is very steep for our small church that has also gone 

through vandalism (2 glass doors and over 7 of our 6 feet glass windows) that cost us nearly 10,000 

dollars to fix. If we must pay an extra 10,000 dollars in property taxes, it’ll be a detrimental hit to the 

wellbeing of the church and our community.  

Person writing this letter is a deacon of the church and has been serving as treasurer for the church since 

June of 2023. I am the youngest and only board member of the 12, that speaks English.  

We ask that you please take into consideration the language barrier and lack of know-how from the 

community in making your decision regarding the abatement. We did not know we had to apply for tax 

exemption until I saw the property tax letter in 2024 of January.  

Thank you, 

Andome Abay, Deacon/Treasurer of Abune Tsehay Aregawi Tigray Tewahedo church,  

Andome920@gmail.com 

 

 





WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

9/05/2024 9/10/2024

Kenny Schmitz

✔

✔

✔

Law Enforcement Center (3701 28th St.) Emergency Generator Service Contract

Building Services Department is responsible for the Operations, Maintenance, & Services at the new LEC.
Emergency Generators provide life/ safety & require specialized equipment services to maintain.

Building Services contacted Ziegler-Cat to provide an Emergency Generator Service Contract (3-Yr.) drafted
similarily to the current contracts for the other County Buildings Generators. Trained service technicians
provide monthly p.m's and reports relative to these contracts. These reports are provided to the State
Corrections Inspector annually as required & are a step in that approval process.

Building Services Department LEC Annual Operating Budget Account #9113
Annual Payment Option $15,124.67 or Monthly Option $1,327.73

Building Services recommends approving the Ziegler-Cat Contract and choosing the one-time Annual payment 
option of $15,124.67

Motion to approve Ziegler-Cat Contract and Annual Payment Option.



















WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

9/4/24 9/10/24

Patrick Gill

✔

✔

Consideration of Replacement Plotter for GIS Mapping

  The plotter/scanner that we use for GIS/Mapping duties needs to be replaced.  

The current plotter is over five years old.  We have a service contract to keep it functional.  Problems are 
occurring more frequently resulting in an interruption of services.

The replacement cost is $10,801 which includes service for three years.  We cannot cover this cost in our 
current budget and if we wait to for the next budget cycle we will have to sign up for another year of service 
and it will not solve the down time issue.

There are funds currently available from gaming proceeds.

Motion to purchase a plotter/scanner to replace current equipment for GIS/Mapping needs.

































WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:  ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐   Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐  Other:  Informational  ☐   Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:  

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

9/5/2024 9/10/2024

Supervisors Ung & Bittinger

✔

✔

✔

Authorize the Chairman to sign Agreement for Hospital Morgue Use with UnityPoint Health - Sioux City

A contract from and with UnityPoint Health ("UPH") for use of hospital morgue for Medical Examiner cases is 
being presented. Contract is for monthly morgue fees and case storage.

Woodbury County ("WC") has utilized UPH's hospital morgue for Medical Examiner Cases since 2007. WC 
currently contracts with UPH through Pathology Medical Services. A new contract is proposed between WC 
and UPH for the continued use of the hospital morgue through 12/31/25. On 12/31/25, UPH will be relocating 
its morgue and no longer providing use of the morgue for WC. 

Monthly use fee beginning September 2024 will be $534.65 + $75 per body storage fee. Since March 1, 2016, the 
use fee has been $225 + $75 per case storage fee.  The increase correlates directly to increased costs incurred by 
UPH to provide space, supplies, and service.

UnityPoint Health - Sioux City has been a great partner with Woodbury County and has absorbed higher costs 
for the shared cause of providing this critical service for our citizens. We appreciate their history of working with 
Woodbury County throughout the years, and after meeting with Jane Arnold (President, UnityPoint Health - 
Sioux City), we are convinced that this request is warranted.

Authorize the Chairman to sign Agreement for Hospital Morgue Use with UnityPoint Health - Sioux City



 

 

AGREEMENT FOR  

HOSPITAL MORGUE USE 

This Agreement for Hospital Morgue Use (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between 

Northwest Iowa Hospital Corporation d/b/a UnityPoint Health – Sioux City, an Iowa nonprofit 

corporation (“UPH-SC”), and the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors, a subdivision of the 

State of Iowa (“County”), effective September 1, 2024 (“Effective Date”). 

WHEREAS, UPH-SC operates an acute care hospital in Sioux City, Woodbury County, 

Iowa and operates a morgue in connection with that hospital, 

WHEREAS, County is intermittently in need of the use of a morgue (“Services”), and 

WHEREAS, the parties have concluded that, in furtherance of their shared mission, they 

wish to arrange for UPH-SC to provide Services to County according to the terms set forth in this 

Agreement, 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Obligations of UPH-SC.  UPH-SC will provide County with the Services itemized 

in the first table set out on Exhibit A, attached to this Agreement and incorporated into it by 

reference (“Services”).  Subject to availability, UPH-SC will also make available the supplies 

itemized on the second table set out on Exhibit A (“Supplies”). 

2. Obligations of County.  County will make use of the morgue and UPH-SC’s 

Services in accordance with all Laws, as defined below, and with UPH-SC’s policies and 

procedures, and County will pay UPH-SC’s invoices as set forth below. 

3. Payment.  UPH-SC will issue monthly invoices to County reflecting all charges 

for Services and Supplies, and County will pay UPH-SC in full within thirty (30) days after its 

receipt of any invoice from UPH-SC.  Applicable charges are set out on the attached Exhibit A. 

4. Independent Contractor.  In the performance of this Agreement, UPH-SC shall 

at all times be an independent contractor and not an agent of County.  UPH-SC alone shall be 

responsible for the method and manner in which it and its employees carry out the duties set forth 

in this Agreement.  UPH-SC shall remain the exclusive employer of the persons performing 

Services, and shall be solely responsible for paying their wages, payroll, payroll reporting, 

withholdings and payments including all Social Security, income taxes, unemployment taxes, 

workers’ compensation insurance, benefits, benefit administration, benefit continuation 

obligations, and any other related payroll taxes or deductions, (together with any required 

employee contributory portion) and other employee benefit costs and contributions. 

5. Compliance.  All Services rendered by UPH-SC and County’s use of Services 

pursuant to the terms of this Agreement will be in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and 

regulations of all local, state and federal regulatory agencies and accrediting bodies with 

jurisdiction over any aspect of Services performed under this Agreement (“Laws”). 



 
 

-2- 
 

6. Indemnity.  Each party (the “Indemnifying Party) agrees to indemnify and hold the 

other party, its officers, directors, employees and agents (the “Indemnified Party”) harmless from 

and against any loss, liability, damage, action, cost or expense (including reasonable attorney’s 

fees and court costs) arising out of (i) the negligence acts or omission of the Indemnifying Party, 

its officers, directors, employees or agents, and (ii) a breach of the terms of this Agreement, 

including any attachments or exhibits to this Agreement, by the Indemnifying Party. 

7. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from the Effective Date through 

December 31, 2025. 

8. Termination. Notwithstanding the stated term, this Agreement may be terminated 

as follows: 

a. For Cause.  For cause, by either party, upon giving the other party not less 

than thirty (30) days’ prior written Notice of termination specifying the alleged breach and 

the date on which termination will be effective, provided that in the event of termination 

for cause under this subparagraph, the party receiving Notice shall have the notice period 

in which to correct or cure the alleged breach to the reasonable satisfaction of the party 

giving Notice.  It shall be a terminable breach of this Agreement for County to present 

medical waste and/or sharps to UPH-SC in violation of the Guidelines; 

b. Supervening Law.  By either party following reasonable (determined with 

regard to minimizing or eliminating the risk) written Notice to the other party based upon 

an opinion from such party’s legal counsel that existing or changed statute, regulation, 

interpretation, case law or other Laws applied to this transaction create(s) an unreasonable 

risk of sanction, prosecution, or assessment to the party giving Notice; or 

c. Without Cause.  By either party, for any reason upon sixty (60) days’ 

advance written Notice to the other party. 

9. Access to Books and Records.  To the extent required by Laws, until the expiration 

of four (4) years after the furnishing of products and services pursuant to this Agreement, County 

agrees to make available upon receipt of written request from the Secretary of Health and Human 

Services or the U.S. Comptroller General or any of their duly authorized representatives, this 

Agreement and the books, documents and records that are necessary to certify the nature and extent 

of costs of products and services provided by UPH-SC hereunder. 

10. Notices.  Any Notices relating to this Agreement must be in writing and shall be 

mailed to their parties at their principal place of business, by certified mail, return receipt 

requested.  Notice will be deemed to have been given on the third (3rd) mailing day after being 

deposited in United States mail. 

11. Governing Law.  This Agreement is made under and shall be construed according 

to the laws of the State of Iowa excluding its conflicts of laws principles. 

12. Jurisdiction; Fees and Costs.  The parties consent to the jurisdiction of courts 

sitting in the State of Iowa over any dispute arising between them regarding this Agreement.  If 



-3-

either party brings legal action regarding this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 

reasonable attorney fees and costs. 

13. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement states the entire agreement between the

Parties and supersedes any prior agreements, understandings, or representations with respect 

thereto.  

14. Amendments. Any amendment to this Agreement must be made in writing and

signed by authorized representatives of both Parties. 

15. No Waiver.  No failure or delay by either Party in exercising any right, power or

privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any 

right, power or privilege hereunder preclude any further exercise thereof or the exercise of any 

other right, power or privilege hereunder.  No waiver of any term or condition of this Agreement 

will be valid or binding on a Party unless agreed upon by such Party in writing. 

16. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is found by a proper authority to

be unenforceable, that provision shall be severed, and the remainder of this Agreement will 

continue in full force and effect. 

17. Assignment.  Neither party may assign its rights or obligations under this

Agreement except to an affiliate of the party, or with the express written consent of the other, 

which shall not be unreasonably denied. 

18. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, any one

of which will be deemed an original, but all of which will constitute one and the same instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement, effective as of the 

Effective Date. 

NORTHWEST IOWA HOSPITAL WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF 

CORPORATION SUPERVISORS 

By: By: 

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 

Chairman 

9/10/2024

Matthew Ung



-4-

EXHIBIT A 

UnityPoint Health  
Woodbury County Monthly Morgue Costs 

Service Rate Monthly Total 

EVS Cleaning $23.50/hour* $174.55 

Laundry $0.61/lb $20.33 

Security $30.62/hour* $278.16 

Supplies** $539.11/year $44.94 

Stericycle $200/year $16.67 

TOTAL $534.65*** 

*Includes benefits

***An additional $75 storage fee per case will be billed if Medical Examiner Cases are 
stored in the hospital morgue pending disposition. 

**Itemized supplies 

Quantity Unit Price 
Total 
Price Monthly 

Shoe covers 4 boxes $19.23/box $76.92  $6.41 

Gloves 12 boxes $9.25/box $111.00  $9.25 

Gowns 4 boxes $6.32/box $25.28  $2.11 

Face shields 6 each $3.06 each $18.36  $1.53 

Masks 2 boxes $3.47  $6.94  $0.58 

Scalpel blades 1 case $41.53  $41.53  $3.46 

Long blades 20 

$400.45 (per 
case of 50 

blades) $160.18  $13.35 

EDTA tubes 2 flats 

$108.00 per 
case of 10 

flats $21.60  $1.80 

Red top tubs 2 flats 
$81.60/case 

of 10 flats $16.32  $1.36 

Biohazard bags 1 box $16.03  $16.03  $1.34 

Formalin 960 ml 24 $44.95  $44.95  $3.75 

TOTAL $539.11  $44.94 


	Insert from: "09-10 (County Morgue).pdf"
	Morgue Agenda Item 9.24
	01-31 (Nature Center)
	01-24 (CF Revenues)
	Item 1 (1-3-23)
	Agenda Form (1-page)




	agr-Woodbury County Morgue Use 2024 09 04


